
KETCHIKAN GATEWAY BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
No. 8 d 
 
MEETING OF July 17, 2019       REVIEWED BY: 
 
ITEM TITLE: 

CONSENT CALENDAR      [  ]   Superintendent 
Approval of the April 17, 2019 special meeting minutes  [  ]   Personnel   

         [  ]   Finance   
         [  ]   Special Services 

             
SUBMITTED BY: Kerry Watson   
 
CONTACT PERSON/TELEPHONE:    APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL: 
 
 
Kerry Watson  247-2142  
________________________________________    ________________________________________ 

Name   Phone     Superintendent 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
Matters listed under the “Consent Calendar” are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion and one 
vote. The appropriate motion is to: “I move to approve the Consent Calendar.” There will be no separate discussion of 
the items under the Consent Calendar. If a Board member requests discussion, that item will be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and will be considered under “Unfinished Business.” 

 
A.  Motion to approve the special meeting minutes of April 17, 2019. 

 
 
 
 

* NOTE:  

If amendments or corrections are desired to the minutes, request removal of the minutes. 

The minutes will then be acted upon under Unfinished Business.  Appropriate motions to 

correct or amend the minutes are in order.  

 

Otherwise, the motion to accept the Consent Calendar is appropriate. 

 
 
 

 



 

DRAFT unapproved special meeting minutes of April 17, 2019 1 

KETCHIKAN GATEWAY BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Special Meeting of April 17, 2019 
6:00 p.m. 

Ketchikan Gateway Borough Assembly Chambers 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER; PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE; ROLL CALL 
The Ketchikan Gateway Borough Board of Education met in special session on the 17th day of April 
2019, in the Ketchikan Gateway Borough Assembly Chambers. Board President Matt Eisenhower called 
the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
The following members were present to establish a quorum and due notice had been published:          
Board President Matt Eisenhower; Board Vice-President Sonya Skan; Board Members Bridget Mattson; 
Rachel Breithaupt and Thomas Heutte. Clerk-Treasurer Diane Gubatayao participated via teleconference.  
 
Also present were: Superintendent Beth Lougee; Katie Parrott, Business Manager, and W. Trent 
Headley, Board Secretary. 
 
CITIZEN REMARKS 
There were none. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING - BUDGET 
Motion to accept the proposed FY20 Operating Budget with a total proposed operating budget of 
$40,411,331 and a discretionary contribution from the Borough set at $5,746,014. 
Moved by:  BREITHAUPT; Second by: HEUTTE 
 
Public Hearing 
No members of the public came forward to speak. 
 
Budget presentation 
Business Manager Katie Parrott presented information regarding the proposed budget to aid the School 
Board in its deliberations. First, she reviewed two revenue projection scenarios with the Board. One 
scenario reflected an increase that was originally discussed with the Borough Assembly at a joint work 
session in January, but now with some assumptions built in.   The second revenue scenario presented a 
more conservative approach. It did not include the one-time supplemental funds for FY 20 ($389,626), 
which were still an uncertainty, said Ms. Parrott. In addition, in this scenario, the request for the local 
discretionary contribution was lowered.  
 
Business Manager Parrott commented on the carryover funds as being an area where the district has 
some discretion. However, she recommended being conservative as well with carryover funds, as they 
are a buffer for the difficult budget times.  
 
At this point, Board President Matt Eisenhower made some comments about revenues.  He noted that the 
state contribution would be about 75% of this year's and the "ask" of the Borough was 11% over last year. 
But, the ask was still under the "cap" of what the Borough could legally provide to the district, he said.  He 
also commented on the effect that axing of the state bond debt reimbursement program could have on 
the Borough and thus funding to the district.  
 
Business Manager Parrott next reviewed in depth the proposed operating budget. It was developed after 
direction from the Board for a budget between 2.5 & 5 percent below the status quo, i.e. the current year 
operating budget. Ms. Parrott said that in spreading out the cuts across the board in each area possible, 
the budget being presented was about a 3% decrease from the status quo.  It was built on all that was 
needed to get through this year, she said; while also accounting for the paras/cooks/custodians 
negotiated agreement, still pending approval by the Board.  
 
 
 



 

DRAFT unapproved special meeting minutes of April 17, 2019 2 

Ms. Parrott then explained the following which were reflected in this budget: 

• Changing the Human Resources position from a "director" to a non-certified "manager" position;  

• Reducing the teachers' salary line item by $550,000, through transfers, retirements, and re-
structuring for a 2 FTE (full-time equivalent) cut;  

• A decrease in the instructional support line item representing the loss of 6 FTEs by attrition, and 
one support staff position not being filled. 

• An increase in the custodians/maintenance line item as a result of the new negotiated agreement.  

• The "large equipment line item" had been zeroed out of this budget ($50,000.)  

• Activities funds were reduced by $75,000 to show the amount that has actually been expended in 
the past couple of years. 

• The contribution to the Kanayama exchange program, which supports the Japanese teacher who 
comes here, was cut by $3500. 

• The additional planned contribution of $600,000 from this year's budget into the insurance 
reserve fund was removed. The Borough Assembly indicated it would continue to carry deficit in 
that fund for now, indicated Ms. Parrott.   

 
She also noted that some budget areas were pretty inflexible, such as utilities, and the employee 
insurance line items.  
 
Discussion on motion 
The motion was restated and the Board began a discussion on the motion lasting about 20 minutes.   
 
Board Vice President Sonya Skan viewed the presented budget as still being a best-case scenario. 
Although it is a 4% reduction over status quo, she said, a larger budget reduction might need to occur.  
She said she doesn't want to cut back on what students will need, but added it is hard to agree to a 
budget when the amount of revenue the district will receive is unknown. 
 
Board Eisenhower commented on giving the Borough an opportunity to participate in funding the district 
at an amount large enough to keep it whole. 
 
Responding to Ms. Skan's comments, Board Member Bridget Mattson clarified that the presented budget 
was a 3 percent reduction off the status quo, rather than 4 percent; but added that she also was 
concerned this might not be enough. 
 
Board Clerk-Treasurer Diane Gubatayao asked about the balance in the local education fund with the 
Borough, and also mentioned the tobacco excise tax and Secure Rural Schools funds. Ms. Parrott said 
the local education fund was $450,000. Following up on that, Mr. Eisenhower commented on property tax 
being the funding mechanism for the schools, but said there are other ways to fund the schools.  
 
There was some discussion and speculation on whether the Governor would veto $30 million in 
supplemental aid to school districts.  
 
Ms. Mattson commented that designing a budget without knowing at all what to expect from the Borough 
and the state is "nuts." She added that it isn't right to play with people's lives like this.  Although she said 
she is not willing to vote for the full extent of the Governor's cuts, Ms. Mattson felt that 3% wasn't enough 
of a reduction. 
 
There was more discussion regarding this budgeting being a guessing game. Board Member Rachel 
Breithaupt queried if it even made sense to try to cut to the extent of the Governor's proposed budget, 
which would potentially mean closing a school. The nearly impossible is being asked, she said. Ms. 
Breithaupt advocated for sticking with the proposed budget and fighting for it.  
 
Mr. Eisenhower described what he saw as the crux of the issue:  If the Board guesses wrong and the 
budget is drastically slashed, that means hard decisions in July and August. If the guess is wrong in the 
other direction, the fix of hiring back teachers seems less painful.  
 
 



 

DRAFT unapproved special meeting minutes of April 17, 2019 3 

Board member Tom Heutte shared his thoughts. He said that at the previous Board meeting he had 
advocated for more severe cuts as he was thinking about the least painful path ultimately for the 
teachers. However, Rachel had pointed out that acting in the students' best interest was key. Mr. Heutte 
said the less painful scenario is as good as anything.   
 
Ms. Gubatayao expressed optimism that the Legislature would not cut education drastically. Ms. Mattson 
agreed that it wouldn't be as drastic as what the Governor had broached; but stated there will be some 
cuts and she didn't believe the Borough could make up the difference.   
 
There was more discussion regarding whether to ask administration to cut more from the presented FY 
20 budget. Ms. Breithaupt again expressed anguish with the talk of more cuts. The administration has 
already been conservative and found creative solutions in presenting this budget to the Board, she said.  
 
Ms. Skan also expressed concern with too deep of cuts, especially in terms of teachers having to leave 
town for other jobs. She stated that constituents want to make sure students have the best education 
possible. Ms. Skan said she wants the level to be at a point where the Borough and everyone else sees 
the district is doing that.   
 
Business Manager Parrot and Superintendent Lougee provided feedback. Ms. Parrott said that not much 
beyond the 3% can be cut without scaling back programs. Ms. Lougee said contingency plans for the 
"what ifs" down the road have been considered.  Further reductions will mean cutting into programs and 
determining what those programs would be, she said.  If a worst-case scenario emerges down the road, a 
layoff plan is ready to roll out, she said.   
 
Board Member Heutte said he has no desire with going through line by line and monkeying with the 
presented budget.  
 
Board Member Mattson said administration had done a fine job in presenting the reduced budget as the 
Board had asked. She indicated that if the Board had gotten it wrong in predicting the amount that should 
be cut, it was on them as a body.  
 
Board President Eisenhower said the Board could amend the budget again at its next meeting; but the 
only thing left to cut now is staff and programs.  Programs could mean an entire departmental cut, such 
as foreign language or personnel such as librarians, for example, he stated.  
 
ROLL CALL 
GUBATAYAO, HEUTTE, SKAN, BREITHAUPT, EISENHOWER - ALL AYES 
MATTSON - NAY 
5-1 
MOTION PASSED  
 
Board President Eisenhower stated the FY 20 budget would come back to the Board at its April 24, 2019 
meeting for its second reading.  
 
Adjournment 
With no objection, the special session was adjourned at 7:29 p.m. 
 
Submitted by Kerry Watson, Clerk to the Board 

 

 
Attached for reference:  The proposed FY 20 budget 




	* NOTE:
	If amendments or corrections are desired to the minutes, request removal of the minutes. The minutes will then be acted upon under Unfinished Business.  Appropriate motions to correct or amend the minutes are in order.
	Otherwise, the motion to accept the Consent Calendar is appropriate.
	Special Session of April 17, 2019.pdf
	April 17 Supplemental Information.pdf
	FY20 Draft KGBSD Budget Comparison by OBJECT v.2
	FY20 Draft KGBSD Revenue Projections v.3


	April 17 Supplemental Information.pdf
	FY20 Draft KGBSD Budget Comparison by OBJECT v.2
	FY20 Draft KGBSD Revenue Projections v.3




